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NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM

Property Name: Forest Glen Historic District Inventory Number: M:31-8

Description of Property and Eligibility Determination: (Use continuation sheet if necessary and attach map and photo): (CONT’D)

The Forest Glen Historic District is eligible for the National Register of Historic Places under Criteria A and C. The historic district
is eligible under Criterion A as an excellent example of early suburban development facilitated by the opening of a rail line. Forest
Glen is an early residential community that illustrates the history of suburban growth in Montgomery County which was largely
dependent on the 1870s completion of the Metropolitan Branch of the Baltimore & Ohio Railroad. The district retains a fair number
of structures constructed by the Forest Glen Improvement Company in the late nineteenth century as well as other late nineteenth and
early twentieth century structures, including the Gothic Revival St John’s Church. The Forest Glen Historic District is also eligible
for the National Register of Historic Places under Criterion C, for its outstanding examples of Queen Anne, Stick-style and Gothic
Revival architecture that retain an excellent degree of integrity. In addition, the setting of the historic district remains intact, despite
the construction of several new houses along Hollow Glen Road.

Though the community is associated with John Carroll and the Carroll family, who established the first St. John’s Chapel in the early
eighteenth century in what would become Forest Glen, the significance of the community is based on nineteenth and twentieth
century suburban themes. Therefore, the historic district does not meet Criterion B. Finally, investigations have not been conducted
to determine whether the property has the potential to yield information important in history or pre-history, therefore, National
Register Criterion D cannot be assessed at this time.

Boundaries for the Forest Glen Historic District were established in 1984 for the district’s listing on the Montgomery County Master
~ Plan for Historic Preservation. We are recommending a revised version of this boundary that eliminates the five modern residences
on Hollow Glen Road. This non-contiguous boundary represents the community’s period of significance between 1891 and the early
twentieth century and includes both contributing and non-contributing resources. The following structures are contributing resources
within the Forest Glen Historic District: St. John’s Academy at 2404 Forest Glen Road; Agnes Caldwell House at 2420 Forest Glen
Road; Thomas I. Murphy House at 2501 Avenue; John E. Semmes House at 2500 Holman Avenue; St. John’s Catholic Church at
9700 Rosensteel Avenue; St. John’s Rectory at 10000 Rosensteel Avenue; John Carroll Replica Chapel and St. John’s Cemetery in
the 10000 block of Rosensteel Avenue; John T. Knott House at 9805 Rosensteel Avenue (non-contiguous); 2418 Forest Glen Road
and Joseph R. Hertford House at 9815 Hollow Glen Road (non-contiguous). One modern non-contributing resource is located
within the Forest Glen Historic District (2400 Forest Glen Road).
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Magi No.
%é%arylaﬁ’d Historical Trust
Gtate Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes __no
”@ . Nﬁme tindicate preferred name)
nistoric Forest Glen, Maryland
and/or common Forest Glen Historic District
2. Location
Forest Glen Rd. at S., Rosensteel Ave. at E to :
utreet & number  Holman Ave. at N. including Hale Place to  ——notfor publication
Glen Rd. west to the railroad tracks. -
city,town  Forest Glen — vicinity of congressional district 1 3+h
siate Marvyland county Montgomervy
3. Classification
Gategory Ownership Status Present Use ‘
__Xdistrict - public * _ X occupied . agriculture — . museum
—— building(s) _X_private - unoccupied - _X _ commercial —— park
. Structure — both — work in progress _ . educational X _ private residence
— site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment X _ reiligious
.~ _. object - in process % yes: restricted - government ——.. scientific
____being considered ____ yes: unrestricted __ industrial —— transportation
not appllCc‘lble X no m!“tary e other

@ owner Gf Propﬁrty (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Multiple Ownership
street & number ~ telephone no.:
gity, town " state and zip code

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Montgomery County Courthouse liber
street & number _ folio
city, town Rockville state MAryland

6. Representation in Existing =istorical surveys

title M-NCPPC Historic Sites Inventory

date 1976 — federal _X_state _X ccuhiy — local

AT

aository for survey records  M-NCPPC Park Historian's Office

city, town Rockville state Maryland




. Description ‘ Survey No. -}4:31-8

Lendition Check one Check one

. excellent — deteriorated ____ unaltered . original site

e GO0 —_ruins —— altered — moved date of move
Al . Unexposed

-~

‘repare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its

sarious elements as it exists today.

Forest Glen, as laid out in the Forest Glen. Investment
Company's subdivision of Joseph's Park recorded on July 31,
1887, included twenty-six blocks ranging in size from three
to sixty-four lots (the average being 22 lots)., It was lo-
cated northeast of the Forest Glen Station of the Metropoli-
tan Branch of the B&0 with the '"Road from Turnpike to Station"
(Forest Glen Road) as the northern border. The present For-

" est Glen Historic District, however, includes only a frac-
" tion of the originally proposed subdivision along with the
commercial area located near the railroad tracks.

The boundries of the present district are Forest Glen
Road to the north from the railroad tracks to the west-to---
Rosensteel Avenue to the east to include St. John's church.
The eastern boundry is Rosensteel Avenue heading north to
Holman Avenue running to the west, including the buildings
along Glen Hollow Road (formerly Hale Place) and then down
Glen Road back to Forest Glen Road towards the railroad.
tracks to include the general store and castle-like build~
ing. =

~ The community of Forest Glen is a picturesque, tree
- filled suburban community tucked away from the busy Silver
Spring commercial ‘area. It includes a number of Victorian
era and early twentieth century buildings, residential and
commercial, -intermixed. withrlate 1940's homes. and apartment
buildings. As said in a late nineteenth century promotions .
al brochure, - ' : -

Lying to the north of Washington, scarcely. beyond the
‘1imits of the District of Columbia, and bordering on

the picturesque and romantic Rock Creek where it threads
its tortudus course through the fertile meadows and
wooded hills of Montgomery County is Forest Glen....

Its towering trees, rippling brooks, sunny slopes, and
winding avenues, comblne in forming a spoL which for
natural beauty *id séldom’ riviled.' .-

Despite development, Forest Glen has retained much of its
cld character as described here.




<. Significance ' Survey No. . 3}-§

Fariod Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

. prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ___ community planning ____ landscape architecture_____ religion

,,,,,, —.1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic — conservation —faw — 8Cience

~~_1500~1599 ____ agriculture —_ economics — literature ‘ —— Sculpture

16001698 ____ architecture — education — military * . — soctal/

_____ — 1700-1799 ___ art ) —engineering .. music : ¢~ humanitarian

- 1800~-1898 ____ commerce — . exploration/settlement ____ philosophy . theater

e 1800~ - —- communications — industry — politics/government - ___ transportation
— invention — other {specify)

$pecific dates -~~~ T <+ 2 1 Builder/Architect

‘heck: Applicable Criteria: A B _C _ D
and/or . -
Applicable Exception: _ A B C D E F G

Level of Significanger __ natiomal _ state. . Jlocal

“repare both a sumxrgary parag;caph ofs'lgnlffcanéeanda“ge;ig:cal statement of history and’
support. ‘ ' ' '

Forest-Glen is significant for its collectibn of Victorian
era structures. Included are some fine examples of Victorian/
Queen Anne residences, the GothiciRevival architecture of St. P
John's Catholic Church in addition to the commercial architec-
ture of a simple late nineteenth century general store and a
- complex constructed to resemble a castle.

Forest Glen is also significant as an early residential
community illustrating the history of suburban growth in Mont-

<~ gomery County. It was among the first attempts made to lure
Washingtonians out of the city and into the healthy country-like
atmoshpere of a suburban community. Suburban -development' such
as Forest Glen were largely a result of the growth of Washing-
ton, D.C. and the 'coming of the Mertopolitan: Branch of the: B&0
Railroad which provided easy access to and from the city.

Forest Glen and other such early suburban communities--

located largely in the Silver Spring area due to its proxi-
mity to Washingtomn,. D.C.-- marked the beginnings of a movement
towards the suburbanization of Montgomery County. Therefore,
Forest Glen has walue as part of the development of Montgomery
County representing the county's social and ecnomic growth in
the form of early suburban living.

In addition, Forest Glen also attracted people to it as
a resort area and summer retreat.-- Featured was Ye 01d Forest
Inn providing picturesque country surroundings, pure spring
waters and fine cooked meals.
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HISTORY & SUPPORT, FOREST GLEN:

h

Forest Glen was among Montgomery County's earliest subdivi-
sions which resulted from the growth of Washington, D.C., the
coming of the Metropolitan Branch of the B&0 Railroad and the
beginnings of a general interest in suburban, country-like liv-
ing. Areas of Silver Spring such as Forest Glen were one of
the first to develop such communities due to its proximity to
Washington. In fact, most of the early residents of these sub-
divisions came here from Washington. Forest:-Glen was original-
ly developed as a community of summer homes and cottages cen-
tered around a resort hotel. The site was choosen for its
picturesque country surroundings and its location along the
Metropolitan Branch.

On July 15, 1887, the Forest Glen Investment Company of
Montgomery County was recorded in the Corporate Record books.
It was begun by Joseph R. Herford and John T. Knott of Washing-
ton, D.C. and W.H. Carr, Frank Higgins and John C. Muncaster
of Rockville. The company was formed, '"for the purposes of
buying, making investments in holding, subdividing, imporving,
leasing, mortgaging and selling real estate in said Montgomery
County in the state of Maryland; the building, making improve-
ments thereon and investing in, and the building, operating
and leasing hotels, stores or other buildings..."-(Montgomery
County Corporate Records, EBP 1/87, Montgomery County Land
Records). The plat of the Forest Glen subdivsion was recorded
on July 31, 1887. It included twenty-six blocks ranging from
three to sixty-four blocks (the average being twenty-two lots
per block). The subdivision was located directly to the north-
east of the Forest Glen Station and the Forest Inn, with the
"Road from Turnpike to Station' (Forest Glen Road) as the
southern border. The Inn was constructed that same year and
lots were sold and homes built.

A detailed description of Forest Glen was given in 1889
in an article from the Washington Star entitled, "Up the Metro-
politan Road,

Immediately accross the track from Forest Glen Park is
another of Washington's outgrowth's-- a portion of the
famous old Joseph Park property-- now in the possession
of the Forest Glen Investment Company, Mr. J.R. Herford,
President. This subdivision comprises 166 acres of a
natural town site. The elevation is fully 400 feet above
high water mark. A good deal of work has been done in the
laying out and grading of streets, and improvements of
nature will be kept up until there is no more to do.
Although the timber is not as heavy as it is on the park
side of the track, there is still an ample supply of
shade trees. In full working order, with all the guests
it can accomadate, is the well managed Glen Manor Hotel,
situated about two squares from the railraod station.

The rolling character of the surface of this sub-
division settles easy that great sanitary problem with
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Which so many country places have to wrestle, and at the
same time it creates eligible building sites. The old
Carroll Chapel, wherée the proud Carrolls of Carrollton
worshipped as long ago as 1690, is on the property and

is a source from whence much that is interesting may be
drawn. To the northeast are two fine farms, owned respec-
tively by Gen. Getty and ex-Representative Page of Cali-
fornia.

The Forset Glen Improvement Company was also incorpora-
ted in 1887, for the same purposes. It was established by
Frank S. Presbrey, Alexander T. Hensey and Seymore W. Tullock,
of Washington, D.C.; Frank B. Noyes, Alfred Ray and Hatter-
sley W. Talbott of Montgomery County and Charles A. Boston
of Baltimore. According to a promotional brochure put out by
the company at that time it was begun,

With the purposes in view of affording the citizens of
Washington what there had been a demand for, namely: a
healthy, well located, and easily accessible suburban
village, and in addition, a commodious summer hotel,
which should be especially adapted to the wants of the
very large class of officials and business men who find
it necessary or pleasant to remain near Washington dur-
ing the summer months.

The brochure also mentioned that a number of beautiful houses
were in the process of being erected and that there was '"every
indication that a large number will be commenced during the
summer and fall'" ("Forest Glen Park and The Forest Inn,'" The
Forest Glen Improvement Company, Mont. Co. Hist. Soc. Library).

The Forest Inn attracted large numbers of Washingtonians
to Forest Glen. According to the 1889 Washington Star article,
"just what the Capitol is to the city of Washington the Inn
is to Forest Glen-- it is the center from which everything
radiates and to which everything stands.'" The Inn was design-
ed by T.F. Schneider and built by W.P. Lipscomb. The Star
article goes on to report that it had become a "popular fad"
to drive out to Forest Glen in the early evenings, stroll
about the grounds and enjoy the drinking water of the pure
springs and the fine cooked meals prepared at the Inn. Un-
fortunately, the Forest Inn did not meet with continued suc-
cess and was sold in 1894 to serve as the main building for
an exclusive private school for girls, the National Park
Seminary.

In addition to transport provided by the Metropolitan
Branch of the B&0 Railroad which had a station in Forest Glen
by 1879, access to and from Forest Glen was furnished by
the Washington, Woodside and Forest Glen Railway and Power
Company of Montgomery County. This corporation was formed
in August of 1895 by a group of men from the surrounding
communities of Woodside, Sligo, Linden, Forest Glen and Capi-
tol View. According to the articles of incorporation (Corpor-
ation Records, EBP 1/239), '"The object or purpose for which
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incorporation is sought is to build, equipt and operate a
passenger railway line from the terminal of the Brightwood
Railroad Company of Washington, D.C. to Forest Glen Station
on the Metropolitan Branch of the Baltimore and Ohio Rail-
road in Montgomery County and also for the purpose of fur-
nishing heat, light and power."

Forest Glen was not without its commercial enterprises
either. 1In September of 1883 a post office was opened. It
was run by George Peter who also ran a general store. This
store has been in almost continous operation from that time
as Forest Glen's General Store (and only grocery store) to
the present day. Next door to the General Store is the cas-
tle-like building the first part of which was constructed
about 1902 to house parents visiting their daughters at the
National park Seminary. However, it was never really used
for this purpose. In september of 1912 the Rowland Company
was formed to deal as merchants in the following commodities,
"meats and provisions generally; chemicals, perfumery, soap
and toilet articles generally; coal and wood; produce of any
and all kinds; milk, cream, butter, eggs cheese and dairymen
products generally; flowers, photographer's supplies, etc.
(Corporation Records EBP 1/489). In other words, it sold
general merchandise and operated out of the castle building.
William Tullock of the Forest Glen Investment Company, George
M. Wolfe and Ervin C. Harmon formed the corporation. The
building itself was added to between 1910 and 1912. The
company too expanded, becoming the Forest Glen Trading Com-
pany in July of 1914.

Despite all these efforts, not to mention the beautiful
location and convenient accessibility, Forest Glen was not
developed to its potential. A few houses were consturcted
during the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries,
most of which remain standing, but the subdivision of Forest
Glen remained largely undeveloped. Many lots were bought
up by single individuals (such as John T. Knott) and left
vancant. Most of the present infill of homes including the
Glen Manor Garden Apartments were constructed in the late
1940's.
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RESQURCES:
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A familiar landmark in Forest Glen is the Castle, a commer-
cial structure combining a Spanish Mission style with a Medieval
castle design. It is a large, two story stuccoed structure with
arcades on both stories and with a tile roof. Rising from the
top and rear are the granite turrets and battlements of a cas-
tle. This building was constructed by the neighboring private
boarding school for girls, the National Park Seminary. It ori-
ginally was a plain, two story structure built to house visit-
ing parents. However, it was never used for this purpose. The
first floor became the general merchandise store of the Rowland
Company, later the Forest Glen Trading Company, and the second
floor was used for apartments. The building was later expand-
ed in 1912. It did not acquire its castle-like appearence, how-
ever, until 1922 when it was rebuilt after a fire which gutted
the interior. The Castle remained the property of the school
until 1941 when it was sold to Washington real estate execu-
tive, John A. Brickley. The Castle was then used to house Mr.
Brickley's office, the "Castle Inn Hotel," a post office, a
number of small shops and apartments. Brickley sold the build-
ing in 1952. 1It. continued to be used commercially. There was
a second fire in 1965 followed by a period of neglect. Then,
in 1967, the Castle was purchased by John T. Doran who renova-
ted it and it is presently being used as a offic building.

Next door is the late nineteenth century Forest Glen Gen-
eral Store. It is a one and a half story, three bay by four
bay frame sturcture with a hipped roof. It has a central en-
try with a large, eighteen  over one:light display window
to either side. At the northwest elevation is a gable roof
addition. To the northeast is a porch supported by chamfered
wooden posts (the porch is now enclosed by glass and food is
served here). The general store and post office was built
in the 1880's and run by George Peter, Forest Glen's first
postmaster. , George and James Peter purchased the lot with
improvements in 1887 from Mary and Oliver Harr, the subdivid-
ers of neighboring Capitol View Park. It was sold in 1890
to Augustus Flack and then sold by the Flack family back to
Oliver Harr in 1894. Mr. Harr, however, was forced to sell
the, "two story and basement metal roof frame dwelling house,
store and post office building... partly new, partly old...,"
due to three mechanic's liens against it. The store was pur-
chased by Alexander and Annie Proctor. After Mr. Proctor's
death in 1940, the building was sold to his son-in-law, Wil-
liam D. Fowler. Mr. Fowler ran a general store here for
many years, selling produce, dairy products, fresh meats,
household items, etc. Mr. Fowler lived in the rooms behind
the store. After his death, the store building was sold in
1971, In 1975, it was purchased by the present owner, Lori
Hall who runs a country store and deli; also selling crafts,
health foods, etc. (Information provided by Inventory form
researched and compiled by Eileen McGuckian and Gail Rothrock,

1979. See form for more information, M-NCPPC Park Historian's
Office, #31-8).
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Another well known community lankmark is the St. John's
Catholic CHurch. The history of this church goes back to 1774
when John Carroll established a parish here to serve the catho-
lics of the area. This event was particularly significant
because at the time catholics had been denied the right to prac-
tice their religion. The original church in now gone, however,
a replica was erected on the grounds in 1956, in honor of the
parish's second pastor, Father Charles O. Rosensteel. It was
Father Rosensteel who directed the construction of the present
St. John's Church in 1894. It is a Gothic Revival Structure
built of Maryland red sandstone. The church is five bays in
length with pointed arched stained glass windows with Buttres-
ses between each. The church is entered from the squared tower
facade, three stories high with a belfry in the top story. It
is topped by a large steeple. Behind. the church is a two
story shingled bell tower.

Adjacent to the church is the parish house. It is a large,
early twentieth century, frame, Colonial Revival structure. It
is three bays by four bays and has a hipped roof with a single
gable roofed dormer at the facade elevation. The house has a
frontispiece entry which includes a segmental pediment and

doric pilasters. At the center of the second story facade is
a triple window.. The house is 1lit by six over one sash win-
dows with shutters. At both side elevations is a single story

porch with entry, supported by doric columns with balustrade.

Surrounding the church buildings is the St. John's Ceme-
tery. Included among the tombstones are some interesting
carved ones dating back to the early 1800's.

Of particular interest to the Forest Glen Historic Dis-
trict are four excellent examples of Victorian/Queen Anne
architecture. All four were constructed in the 1890's and were
for many years almost all that stood in the residential
area. They are located, for the most part, along Hale Place
(recently remamed Glen Hollow Road). All are in good con-
dition and are reflective of high style Victorian architec-
ture generaldy found in the more well-to-do suburban areas.

The first, #9815 Hale Place is a large, ornately decorated,
asymetrical Victorian frame residence. It is a two story, L-
shaped structure with a three story tower in the L. It has
a gable roof with a gable peak at the northern end of the
facade. A porch with chamfered posts and balustrade extends
across the facade and the southern side of the front L. On
the southern side elevation is a projecting bay window with
a covered balcony above. The house is lit by two over two
sash windows with shutters. It was built about 1891 by the
Forest Glen Investment Company (Mont. Co. Commissioners Tax
Asses. Books, date property appears with improvements listed).
It was owned by one of the members of the corporation, Joseph
R. Hertford, until June of 1895 when it was sold after he
defaulted on the mortgage. The house, on lots #14, 15 &18
of block 17, was then described as a large, well built resi-
dence of two stories with eight rooms, a bathroom, cellar
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and attic. According to the sale advertisement, the property
was ''adorned with shade trees' (as it still is) and convenient-
ly located near the railroad station (Equity #1299, Judge-

ment Record, JA 11/465). 1t was sold for $3,615 to Addison
Fritchey who sold it less than a year later to Emma E. Knott
(Deed JA 53/43). Emma Knott owned the house for many years.

In october of 1973 it was purchased by the C.M. Llewellyn, Inc.
and is now being offered for sale.

Next is #2411 Holman Avenue which is a fine example of
Victorian Stick-Style architecture. It is a three bay by
four bay, two and a half story frame structure with a center
gable roof. An extremely ornate Stick porch with turned posts,
jig-sawn brackets and balustrade runs the length of facade
and around to the southern elevation. The porch has a shed
roof with a center gable over the entry at the northwest end.
On the second story side elevation at the southeast corner is
a small balcony enclosed by a balustrade railing with a wooden
panel featuring a sunburst design. The roof of the house
extends down here to cover the balcony and is supported by
decorative brackets. Two over two sash windows light the
house. Other Victorian architectual details include the
bargeboard in the facade center gable, sunburst pattern panels
above the windows on the second story facade and a mix of
building materials including novelty and clapboard siding
and fishscale shingles. The house was built in 1891 by
Shepard S. Everett on lots #26, 27 &30 of block 17 which he
purchased in 1890 from Joesph R. Herford of the Forest Glen
Investment Company. Shepard and his wife, Emma owned the
house until 1906 when it was sold to Etta J. Miller. Follow-
ing the death of Etts's husband, William she sold the pro-
perty to Stanley and Hilda Borzage. Then, in 1947, they
sold it the the present owners, John and Olive Baldwin.
(Information provided by Inventory form prepared by Candy
Reed and Eileen McGuckian &others, 2/79. For additional in-
formation, see form on file at the M-NCPPC Park Historian's
Office, #31/8).

Sitting, across from the Baldwin house is #2500 Holman
Avenue. This too is a fine example of late Victorian archi-
tecture. It is a large, frame, L-shaped residence. To the
east side of the facade is a two bay, two story section with
a center gable roof. The center gable is framed by a pro-
jecting cornice on all three sides and has a small two paned
window in the center. The entry sits back on the west side,
located in a three story squared tower-like section with an
open top story. Behind this is the center gable roof like
that previously described. In front of this section is an
entry porch with turned posts and jig-sawn trim with a
framed pediment. This porch continues around to the west
elevation. The house is 1lit by two over two sash windows
with shutters. Two gable roofed dormers are located at the
side elevations. This house was constructed about 1891 by
the Forest Glen Investment Company (Mont. Co. Commissioners
Tax Asses. Books, the property appears with improvements
listed between 1891 and 1896 under the Forest Glen Invest-
ment Company, Joseph Hertford and Benjamin Holman, incorp.).
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It was sold after one of the corporation members, Joseph Hert-
ford, default on the mortgage in 1897. The house, Located on
lots #9 & 12 of block 24, was then described as a "commodious
and attractive new dwelling house'" containing nine rooms and

a bathroom. Also mentioned was a cellar and plumbing. Accord-
ing to the sale advertisement it was '"in every way adapted for
a suburban residence, being 9 miles from Washington and in a
high and healthy location" (Equity #1490, Judgement Record,

JA 15/136). The property was sold for $2,500 to John E. Sem-
mes of Baltimore who sold it in April of 1889 to Emma E. Knott
of Washngton, D.C. (Deed TD 8/202). The prpperty remained

in the Knott family for many years, until June of 1944. It
was purchased in June of 1946 by George and Muriel Willis.

The Willis' lived here for seventy years (renting it before
their purchase). Mrs. Willis, by then a widow, sold the house
in July of 1970. 1In October of 1974 it was purchased by the
present owners, Bruce and Nina Nunnally.

#2501 Forest Glen Road at the corner of Hale Place is
another good example of Victorian architecture, though a
little less elaborate then the other three. This house was
construted in 1899 by Thomas I. Murphy (Mont. Co. Commission-
ers Tax Asses. Books, the first year the property appears in
the books with improvements listed). Mr. Murphy purchased
the land on which the house was built, lot #13 of block 24,
from Clara Leland of Washington, D.C. in October of 1898 for
$300 (Deed TD 6/77). Two years later he purchased the two
adjoining lots, #10 &11, also from Clara Leland. Thomas
Murphy lived here with his wife, Sarah and family until
his death in 1908. An article which appeared in the Sentinel
June 1908 described the house as containing six rooms, a
reception hall, bath and a hot air furnace. The three lots
with dwelling and outbuildings was purchased by Jarrett and
Mabel Shauck of Montgomery County (Deed 200/207). Mr.

Shauck was the station master at Forest Glen. The Shaucks
made an addition to the house about 1928 ( Mont. Co. Commis-
sioners Tax Asses. Books). On May 21, 1933 Jarrett Shauck
died, leaving Mabel and their children Ruth, Anna and Charles.
The property, however, remained in the family until November
of 1977 when it was sold to the present owners, Jonathan and
Carole London. The main block of the house is two stories

high and has a cross gable roof with fish scale shingles and
a single pane window in the gable end. On the first story
facade of the main block is the entry to the western end
with two long, narrow, one over one sash windows to the north
of it. On the second story facade is a double window, also
with one over one lights. To the western side of the main
block is a story and a half section which extends out slight-
ly further than the facade of the main block, but shares

the same central roof. On the roof of this section is a
double window, hipped roof dormer. The eastern end of this
section is set back flush with the main block and includes

a small, one over one window to the west side of the entry.

A porch with Victorian turned posts and balustrade extends
from where the story and a half section extends outward to

b




the eastern end of the facade. To the rear is a two story
gable roofed addition. The house, in good condition, is now
covered with asbestos shingles. N

#9805 Rosensteel Avenue was also constructed by the
Forest Glen Investment Company about 1891 ( Mont. Co. Com-
missioners Tax Asses. Books, first year the property appears
with improvements listed). This structure, however, is much
smaller and simpler in architectual styling then the others
and thus, was probably built as a summer cottage. It is a
Victorian Gothic cottage with a long, narrow, , two story
main block, three bays by two bays with a gable roof with
two high pitched center gables. The exterior is covered
with novelty siding. The entry is centrally located with a
two over two light sash window to either side. On the
second story are also two windows, one located under each
gable peak. A porch supported by chamfered wooden posts,
one at each end and a set of two to either side of the:zporch's
center gable peak. 1In this gable is. the Stick-like framing
of boards intersecting at right angles. At the southern,
side elevation of the first story is a squared extending
bay window. To the rear is a two story addition. The cottage
was in the possession of John T. Knott of Washington, D.C.,
one of the incorporators of the Forest Glen Investment Com-
pany, until March of 1920. At that time the house, on
lot #12 and part of lot #13 of block 16, was sold to Caro-
line D. Culver of Forest Glen (Deed 292/153). 1In April
of 1947, Mrs. Culver (a widow) conveyed the house to John
T. Culver. It remained in the culver family until June os
1960 when it was purchased by the present owners, Philip and
Margaret McGrath.

Along Forest Glen Road are a number of older structures.
The first is #2505 which sits next door to the Shauck house,
#2501, previously discussed. This is a good example of a
1930's period Revival residence. As typical of this house

type, it is simple in massing and detail yet nicely appointed.

The style is traditional, harkening back to early american
architectual design. It is a two story, three bay by two bay
residence with a gable roof. It is covered with weatherboard
siding and has pilastered corners. The house has a central
frontispiece entry which includes a pediment, transom and
pilasters. It is 1lit by six over six light sash windows
with shutters and plain window heads. To the east side
elevation is a single story, one bay wide, gable roofed
addition. The house was constructed about 1934 by the Shauck
family for Anna (a daughter) and her husband, Joel Wise
(Mont. Co. Commissioners Tax Asses. Books, first yvear that
the property appears with improvements listed under the
name of Mabel Shauck). The Wises owned the house for many
years, until December of 1977 when it was sold to the pre-
sent owners, T.R. Sterling Mehring and his wife, Constance.
Across the road is #2420. This house was probably con-

structed in the late 1870's for Agnes caldwell of Montgomery
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County. Ms. Caldwell purchased the 1/2 acre of "Joseph's
Park' on which the house was constructed from James R. Bay-
ley of Baltimore for $50 in February of 1875 (Deed EBP 13/
418). In August of 1877 she sold the property for $700 to
Mrs. William ann McGuire who in turn sold it ten years later
to Jacob S. Norris for $1000. Jacob and his wife, Maggie
Norris defaulted on the mortgage and in October of 1890 the
property was sold at a mortgagee's sale. It was then de-
scribed as a 1/2 acre improved by a "comfortable" two story
frame residence containing eight "large' rooms, with closets,
pantry, etc. a good stable and all the necessary outbuildings.
The advertisement of sale also mentioned that the house had
been ''recently put in good repair'" and had a well and a pump
in the kitchen (Equity #875, Judgement Record JA 7/387).

The property was purchsed by William J. Norris and his wife,
Florence for $1,475. They owned the house until William's
death nine years later. In April of 1909 the house was
purchased by William B. Kelley for $1,500 (Deed 206/116).
It remained in the Kelley family for some time. William
died in 1925 and in 1927 the property was conveyed to one

of his five children, Aloysius and his wife, Ada. The
Kelleys sold the house in 1945. 1In October of 1976 it

was purchased by the present owner, Ann M. Parker. This

is a large, two story, three bay by three bay house with a
low pitched gable roof with a center gable. It is a frame
house now covered with asbestos shingles. On the facade

is an entry porch supported by four large, slightly taper-
ing, squared columns. The roof of this porch is flat and
has a balustrade running along the outside. The house is
lit by two over two sash windows with a double window on

the second stroy facade under the gable peak. The verna-
cular styling of this house is typical of the dwellings con-
structed through out rural Montgomery County during this
period. The house, in good condition, has undoubtedly un-
dergone some slight changes (i.e. porch, shingles).

Next door is #2418. This, like #2505, is another early
twentieth century Traditional Revival style residence. It
is a two stroy, rectangularly shaped, three bay wide struc-
ture and has a gable roof with a bracketed cornice. The
exterior 1s covered with weatherboard siding. The entry
is located to the side of the facade. 1t is a frontis-
piece entry including pediment and pilasters. The house
is 1lit by six over sgix light sash windows framed with
plain trim. For many years the house was the property of
the Catholic church. In May of 1944 it was sold by the
church to Joseph and Ruth Schlosser (Deed 939/400). The
Schlossers owned the house for many years, finally selling
it to the present owner, Thomas McCune in May of 1977.

#2416, next door, is an early twentieth century verna-
cular structure which appears to have been constructed for

some civic or commercial purpose. It may have been the Forest
Glen Schoolhouse (Mr. Rick Nelson, local historian). It
was the property of the catholic church for many years. 1In

May of 1944 the church sold the building on 39,231 square
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feet of land to the present owners, mary and Charles Wilburn,
Jr. It is now being used as a private residence. It is a
single story, frame, three bay by three bay structure with a
gable roof with a dentiled cornice and eves. At the eastern
elevation is an entry with a window to each side. A wooden
porch with plain posts and balustrade runs the length of

this elevation. At the southern gable end elevation, which
faces the street, is another entry including a four panel
door and transom. There is a window to each side of this
entry as well and a small window in the gable end.

Lastly, is #2600 Forest Glen Road at the corner of

Seminary Road. This is a four square style residence.

The four square house, typified by a two story cube shaped
block with a hipped roof (often with dormers), was popular
in both rural and suburban areas of America from the late
1890's through the 1920's. This house was constructed
about 1916 for Henrietta P. Keys (Mont. Co. Commissioners
Tax Asses. Books, the first year that the property appears
with improvements listed). Ms. Keys purchased the two
acres on which the house was constructed from Charles and
Frances Davidson in October of 1915 (Deed 252/321).

It is a two story, three bay by three bay, cube shaped

frame residence with a hipped roof with a single, shed
roofed dormer at the facade elevation. The entry is to
the west side of the facade. The middle bay on the first
story facade is a double window. On the second story
facade are only two windows. The windows are two over
two light sash. At the east, side elevation is another
entry. At the west, side elevation is a single story
addition, also with an entry. The house has been cover-
ed with asbestos shingles.
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—.UNEXPOSED"

. DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Thls is a qulet, wooded re51dent1al area, . that stands in
stark contrast to the surrounding suburban subd1v1s;o&s‘, The Rt
focal ‘point of the neighborhood is the St. John's Catholic Church
and Cemetery. (Rock Creek Parish was established here in 1774
by John Carroll, who later became the first Roman Catholic o
Bishop in the U.S.) A replica of the original, 18th Century, small
frame chapel stands in the old cemetery. The cemetery has many ”

~interesting:old: tombstones, includingicarved Seneca stone markers
from about 1800 "'The third church, built~ifi®1894F seill ‘stands
here. It is made of red sandstone, that came- from Maryland (but
*#af- not from-the- Seﬁeca,quarrles), and is bullt in the Gothic Revival
style. The bulldlng is five bays long, and the bays are separated
by slim, shaped buttresses. The windows in each section are
arched and feature keystone lintels. The entrance is via a
three-story, square tower that projects from the east gable-end
of the building. A large steeple rises above the closed belfry
here. Other interesting features include a flat stone parapet,
that continues to the tower from the SE corner buttress of the S
main block, and a polygonal apse, that progects from the rear N

of the church.
house sits next door.

On the NE of Hale and Holman,

An 1nterest1ng frame, Colonial Revival oarlsh

sits one of the nicest Vie- =

Lorlan homes seen in the County.
board house of two stories,
the gabled facade on this side.

that  faces west.

This is a Stick-Style, clap-
_ The entrance is in
The gable-end itself has patterned

shingles, and is framed with an elaborate combination of Jjigsaw
bargeboards and brackets. An equally-elaborate, open Victorian
porch:surrounds the west and south facades. The railing features
square balusters and posts. The porch roof is supported by turned
posts and spindle brackets. There are two central chimneys.
Diagonally, across the street from this, is a run-down Victorian
home, currently being restored. It is another fine example of
this period, and has a two-story,tower, with an open "belfry"

at the top. . The roof is of stamped, patterned tin. Allegedly,
this home was built by Mr. Holman for his own residence. A

Mr, Willis lived there for 70 years.

9815 Hale Road is another very fine Victorian home that
sits high on the wooded hillside, and features a three-story

tower. Apparently being held for multi-family development.
Other interesting frame homes occur along Hale Pl. and Forest Glen

CONTINUE oN. SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY Road.
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Forest Glen Historic District

C. Non-Contributing Resources - should be given the most lenient
level of scrutiny in reviewing proposed alterations and may be
considered for demolition if requested by owner.

The first four of the foilowing structures are all post-World War
II, Ranch-style houses:

1. 2106 Salisbury Road
2. 2108 Salisbury Road
3. 2109 Salisbury Road
4. 2110 Salisbury Road

5. 2210 Linden Lane - house under construction

Site # ame Location

31/8 Forest Glen See Figures 2A/2B for District

Historiec District Boundaries
I. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE .

Forest Glen was among Montgomery County's earliest subdivi-
sions along the Metropolitan Branch of the Baltimore & Ohio
Railroad. The original plat of 1887, by the Forest Glen Invest-
ment Company, covered 166 acres.

The picturesque setting had previously been chosen by mem-
bers of the Carroll family who had their homestead here: Daniel
Carroll II, who was a member of the Second Continental Congress,
and his brother, John Carroll, first Catholic bishop of the
United States. The attractiveness of the site was described in
an 1889 article in the Washington Star:

"The rolling character of the surface of this subdivi-
sion settles easy that great sanitary problem with
which so many country places have to wrestle, .and at
the same time it creates eligible building sites. The
old Carroll Chapel, where the proud Carrolls of Car-
rollton worshiped as long ago as 1690, is on the
property and is a source from whence much that is
interesting may be drawn."

In the late 18th century, John Carroll established the first
Catholic church in the United States in Forest Glen. A replica
of this chapel is located in the historic district on the site of
the original.

The community grew dramatically in the 19th century. Within
six years of the opening of the B&0's Metropolitan Branch, a
railroad stop named Forest Glen Station was established. The
Forest Glen Post Office opened in 1883. Much of the emphasis of
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the early Forest Glen community was as a summer resort for Wash-
ington residents. In 1887, the same year that the Forest Glen
Investment Company was founded, construction on a resort hotel,
the Forest Glen Inn, was begun.

A promotional brochure for Forest Glen, published in 1887,
described the Glen as "a healthy, well located, and easily acces-
sible suburban village, and in addition, a commodious summer
hotel, which should be especially adapted to the wants of the
very large class of officials and business men who find it neces-
sary or pleasant to remain near Washington during the summer
months." The brochure advertised the construction of beautiful
houses, noting that more were expected to be built in the near
future.

Forest Glen's success as a resort was short-lived. The
Forest Glen Inn proved a financial disaster and was sold in 1894.
It became the centerpiece for the National Park Seminary, a
finishing school for young women.

The area, however, continued to grow as a residential commu-
nity. The Washington, Woodside and Forest Glen Railway was
organized in 1895 to extend streetcar service from the District
line to Silver Spring and Forest Glen, with its terminus at the
National Park Seminary. Construction of the trolley line, which
ran along Seminary Road, was completed in 1897. The trolley line .
was abandoned in 1927, giving way to bus service.

Forest Glen's central block containing St. John's Church
complex and open green serves as a visual center and historical
anchor for the community. There are eleven historic and four non-
historic (non-contributing) structures or sites in the proposed
district. Of the historic structures, at least two and possibly
three predate the subdivision and six were built in the 1890s.
The non-historic structures are generally compatible with Forest
Glen's historic resources in scale, massing, setback, and style.

Forest Glen Historic District shares a close relationship
with two other historic districts, both of which are listed on
the Master Plan for Historic District: National Park Seminary
(#36/1) and Capitol View Park (#31/7). The Forest Glen Inn was
turned into the centerpiece for the National Park Seminary, a
successful finishing school for young women. Like the former
hotel, National Park Seminary is located across the railroad
tracks and the Beltway from Forest Glen, in an area known as
Forest Glen Park. Forest Glen's post office and general store
(now part of the structure known as the Castle, 10 Post Office
Road) is technically located in an adjacent subdivision, Capitol
View Park, established the same year as Forest Glen.
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II. RESOURCES
. : / o .
Buildings in the historic district are categorized as to
their architectural and historical significance so that future
changes can be evaluated in this context:

A. 0utstand1ng Resources - should be given the hlghest level of
scrutiny in reviewing proposed alterations:

2404 Forest Glen Road, St. John's Academy
The lot on which the building stands was purchased by the

church in 1873. The building was constructed c.1874 when Rev.
James F. Mackin established a school for girls here. 1In 1883,
the building was renovated to become a rectory, the predecessor
of the Rosensteel Avenue rectory built in 1899. Since St.
John's was a mission church (i.e. the parish did not have a
resident pastor), a larger rectory was not needed at the time.
In 1944, the church sold the property which is now used as a
private residence.

2. 2420 Forest Glen Road, Agnes Caldwell House

Probably constructed in the late-1870s, the house is the
only one in the historic district which predates the subdivision.
The principal facade faces west, perpendicular to Forest Glen
Road. The vernacular-style residence has a low-pitch roof with
center cross gable, entry porch topped with a balustrade, and
two-over-two sash windows. Agnes Caldwell purchased the half-
acre property for $50 in 1875. Two years later she sold the land
with improvements for $700.

3. 2501 Forest Glen Road, Thomas I. Murphy House .
Constructed in 1899 by Thomas I. Murphy, this Queen Anne-

style house was later the home of Forest Glen's station master,
Jarrett Shauck, and his family. The house remained in the Shauck
family for nearly 70 years.

4. 9815 Hollow Glen Road, Joseph R. Hertford House
Built c.1891, the residence was owned by Joseph Hertford,

President of the Forest Glen Investment Company, until he de-
faulted on his mortgage in 1895, Soon after, Emma E. Knott
bought the house which she owned for many years. The Queen Anne-
style house features a three-story tower, wrap-around porch and
‘covered balcony surmounting a bay window on the south, side
elevation.

5. 2411 Holman Avenue, Shepard S. and Emma Everett House

One of the best examples of Stick Style architecture in the
county, the house takes advantage of its corner lot with two
principal facades facing Holman Avenue and Hollow Glen Place.
The residence features rare wall-texture detailing and elaborate
- porch spindlework. The southwest elevation is characterized by
an embellished horseshoe truss in the gable while the southeast
elevation displays a balcony surmounting a projecting bay window
with a sunburst panel at the railing. This high-style residence




M: 31-8
was constructed in 1891 for Shepard and Emma Everett.

6. 2500 Holman Avenue, John E. Semmes House
Constructed c.1891, the Queen Anne-style residence features

a three-story tower which must have afforded a commanding view of
the surrounding area. Classical details are found in the pro-
jecting cornices, pedimented porch entry, modified pediment in
the front gable, and small oculus window. Owned for the first
few years by the Forest Glen Investment Company, the house was
bought for $2,500 by John W. Semmes of Baltimore, in 1897. At
that time it was described as a "commodious and attractive new
dwelling house" containing nine rooms, a bathroom, and a cellar,
and featuring indoor plumbing.

7. 9700 Rosensteel Avenue, St. John's Catholic Church

This Gothic Revival church was designed by Baldwin & Pen-
nington of Baltimore. E. Francis Baldwin is well known in Mont-
gomery County as the architect of the railroad stations along the
Metropolitan Branch of the B&0 Railroad. Construction of the
church was completed in 1894 by Bell & Br. builders from Redland,
Maryland. The cost of constructing the Maryland-red sandstone
building was $14,000. Five bays on both side elevations of the
church are defined by stained-glass windows, each of which are
flanked by stone buttresses. The entrance to the church is
located at the base of a three-story tower which is surmounted by
a belfry. The building is the third St. John's Church built in
Forest Glen. The first chapel was built in the late-18th century
(of which a replica was built in 1934), and the second was con-
structed in 1850 (now demolished). Both previous churches were
frame. A frame belltower stands independently behind (southwest
of) the stone church.

8. 10000 Rosensteel Avenue, St. John's Rectory

Constructed in 1899, the rectory originally featured a full-
length porch across the front facade with a large wall dormer
centered above the second-story tripart window. The original
porch was removed and front dormer was replaced when the struc-
ture was renovated in the 1930s to give its present Colonial
Revival appearance. The rectory was built by Rev. Charles O.
Rosensteel, first resident pastor of St. John's after John Car-
roll. '

9. 10000 block Rosensteel Avenue, John Carroll Replica Chapel
This replica of the original Carroll Chapel was built in

1934 and restored and dedicated in 1956. Originally constructed
in the late-18th century by John Carroll, the chapel was the
first Catholic Church in the nation.

10. 10000 block Rosensteel Avenue, St. John's Cemetery
St. John's Cemetery was begun in the late-18th century when

St. John's Chapel was established. The earliest burial was for
Eleanor Darnall Carroll, mother of John Carroll, who died in
1796. The tombstone, still extant, is inscribed "Sacred to the
memory of Mrs. Eleanor Carroll, relict of Daniel Carroll, Esq.
She died on the 3rd day of February in the year 1796 age 92.
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This stone is erected over her remains by her mourning children
to testify their veneration for her eminent virtue..." Others
buried here include Daniel Carroll III (d.1790) and wife Eliza-
beth Digges Carroll (d.1843); Robert Brent (1763-1819), first
Mayor of Washington for ten years; and Rev. Charles Oscar Rosen-
steel (d. 1940), who directed the construction of the present St.
John's Church and Rectory.

B. cOntributlng Resource -~ should be given a moderate level of
scrutlny in reviewing proposed alteratlon5°-

1. 2418 Forest Glen Road
Originally owned by St. John's Church this house may be

older than its early 20th-century Colonial Revival-style appear-
ance suggests. Judging by its off-center chimney, the house may
incorporate an older, two-bay structure. It is possible that
this was the three-room building constructed in the late-1880s
for overnight housing of visiting priests. The property was
conveyed to the church at the same time as the original rectory
(2404 Forest Glen Road), in 1873. 1In 1944 the house was sold to
Joseph and Ruth Schlosser who lived here for more than 30 years.

C. Ncn-Ccntrlbutlng Resources - should be given the most lenient
level of scrutiny in reviewing proposed alterations and may be
considered for demolition if reguested by the owner.

The follow1ng are all modern, Victorian Revival-style
-houses:

1. 2400 Forest Glen Road
2. 9807 Hollow Glen Place
3. 9809 Hollow Glen Place

4, 9811 Hollow Glen Place
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AT the request of the Jowl mid Lompany the Tollowing Certirisetes o Incorforition wan
recorted Spotenbapr 20th, A, D, 112 to witi-

™IS IS T0 CENTIIY that the subderibarn, YWilliun U, Mlloecl, ceniding in “uatington,
ifateict of uolumbia, and teorye 1. Wolfe and Hewin o, ilammon, rvesiding in “ontgemery Couriy,
in the State of 'apyland, =11 eitizens or thp Urniltel States and vaing of tie rull le 3Bl ase,
do hersby associntn thamaelven with the intention off formliu: a corporation under .nd hy
virsue of the genecul laws of sthe State of Hacylend authorizing the ormation o cacoceations

¥Firat., ‘'be namo of the corporntion is "The Bowland Corpuny”.

Seconrd. ™e purpose and object for which the corporation i3 furred wro:

To establish ana carry on nll or any parct of the business ol menufncturing, importinug,
exportinig} buying a;pd nelling, either as whplesale or retatl merchants or both, a“y or all of
the followinu elasaea of recchandinse, to wlit: ments and peovialons jenerally; chenicalso, :
pesfumery, foep, and tollet acrticles igencrally; cozl and wood; preduce or any and nll kin'ln';"
milk, crenm, butter, eijtay; cheense and dofiryman's productn generally; flowers, photographer’s
supplien genernlly; nnd without limitation all natursl products, an' all manulnctured gooda
and materinls; and generally and without Limitation all articlies of merchandise usually seld
or which may conveniently be sold in conrasciion with any of the merchandise hereinterore
refe red to.

Third. ‘he location of the principal ofrice of the corporation is at Fore3t Glen in
the County or lonti(omery and Htnte of Maryland.

Fourths The totnl muthorized capital stock or the corporation is ten thousand
dollarcs (J10,000.00) divided into one hundrad shares of the par value of one humarced dollnca
(I101.00) each. OF sueh total authorized capital stock, rirty (50) sharen amouniing to rive
thousand dollara (55,000.00) nhnall ba preferred atock, and Fifty (5)) sharen amounting %o
five thounand dollura (J5,000,00) shall ba common stoeck.

From time to time, the preferred atock and the common atuck may be incrensed according
to law; and moy be isued in such amounts and proporiions mn shall be rdetermined by the
Honrd of Directors.

T=e holdern of % e preferred s ock shall be entitled to receive when ard as declared,
from the nurplus or net prorfits of the corporation, yearly rdividends at the rate of six per
wgentum per smnmm., .and mo mora, payable guarierly on dates to be iixed hy the by-lawa. The
dividerta on the praferred stock shall be comulative, awl shall he payable before any ;
dividend gn the common atock nhall be paid or set apart,no that,if in any year dividemris

amountingi to six per centum shall not have been paid r.hurr.ou'. the deficisncy shall be
Payable pefore any dividaernda shall be paid or aet apart for the common 5thock.

Whencver all cumulative dividends on the preferred stock f'or all urevouls yeurs shall
have been declared arr! shonll have brcome p.aynhle, and the aceruer quarterly installments for
the cucrent yeae shull have beer declaret anl the company shnall have paid auer cunulative
dividerda for previ us years evwdl aueh nearued quarterly installments, or ahall have set aside
from 1ts surpluz or et profita o sum asulfricient for the payment trecreor, the doarl of
Directora may daelnre dididenda on the comron stock, payabls then or thereaf'ter, out of any
remuiningg aurplun orf net profits.

In the event of any liquidation or winding up (wrecthar volunihry or invaoluntery) gr‘
tha corporation, the holders o tre preferred stock shall be ontitled Lo 2e patd in rud
both the par amount of thair shacen, and the unpaid dividends acerusd thereon befcre any
amount shall be paid to tre holdeen of the comfon atock; nr¢l afteér Dayment to tre holders of

the preferred Stock of ita par value, und the unpaid accured rividends thecson, the peomaining

auaats A Fanda aeall ne divided ond pald to e kRaldecs or
B

sla comron Jtoek asea~ing to
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.J yipas, 'Me nane of e corporation is "The Bowland Conpury”. ’4 ,351‘3
3 Secort. ™a purpese ardd object for whteh the corporation io formred wenl
3 my gatablish ant cacry on ALYl or any pact of the businens or menutancturiniz, importing,
exportiniz, buyin; and 2e1ling, eitier as vholesaln or retail merchanta or both, avy or ull of
e thhe followins cleasen of resctyndine, %o Wikl maenta and urnvlniuni_unnnra11y; chenigala,
pesrumery, foap, and tollet articlen enerally; cosl nnd woorl preduce off any and a1l kinving :
milk, oream, BULTAC, ez, cheens mi diicynan's productn jennrnlly; floveca, photofeaphier’ o 'Eﬁf
aupplien gsrerally; nnt without limitation all natursal producta, and wll manui'actured paooda E? # ’
an- mateciala; and generslly and without linmitation all artielen of merchondise usually sold 3 g{
or which may conveniently be nold in connmction with any of' the merchendise hereinberore S;
refsred %o. v 3 :
Tricrt. ‘e loestion of the prinecipal ofrice of the corporation i3 ut Fore3at Glen in :: : h
the County or lontiomery and State of Naryland, % E
e
Fourth. The total nuthorized capital atock of the corporation is ten thousand - iﬁﬁf
dollnrs (210,000,009 divided into one hundrad shares of' the par value of one hwiired dollars I;)f;
(210).00) each. Of such total authorized capitel stock, rifty (50) shares amountimy to five H & :
thousand dollara ({5,000.00) shall be prefecred stock, and rifty (50) shores amounting %o ?
Tfive thousaud rdollara (25,000,.00) shall ba common satock. E.-mf
¥eom tirme to time,,the preferrad atock and the common Stuck many bte inereased according 5*%¥'
ta law, anrl moy be 183ued in suel amounts and proportions an shall be determined by the ;- 4
Hoard of bLirectors. .‘“gg
' e holzears ol %e peatferced n.ock shall be entitled to receive when and o3 declared, R é
from the surplus or net prorita of the cocporation, yuarly rdividends at the rate or aix per : %;
centum per annum, and no more, poyable guerterly on dutes to be tU'ixed by the by-lews., The } aﬁ
divides on the prererrced atock shall be comulative, arl shall be payable before any &%§ﬂ‘
divident on tre common atock shall pe pald or set apart;so that,if in any yeur divideiwris {g :
anoarting to six per centum shell nodt have been paid ‘theceon, the defictency shall be E ,i
payable pefore any dividenda ahall be paid or set apart for the cormmon nhLock. '}
Vhencver all tumulative dividends on the preferred stock f'or all urevouls yeaurs shall 80775
have oeen declored an?! shall have become payable, and the ascerued guarterly installmenta ror gé 2
tie euerant yeur shull have been declared aml the compeny shall have peid suet cunulative g
dividerda for previ us years wod sueh acnorued quarterly installments, or shall have set aside a;.
ferom 1ts surplus or et prorits s sum sufricient for the payment thereof, the Board of |T.
Directoss may rigelnre didirlenda on the comron stock, payable then or thereaf'ter, out of any :?
renaining surplun or net profita. :ﬁ
In the event ol any liquidution or winding up (whecthar veluntary or involuntary) or #
tbe corpomantion, the holders or tre pretferred stock shall ba antitled to ve paid in rull f :
both the gar amouni of their sharss, ant the unpsid dividends accrued therson before any ;
~umount Shall e poir Lo The holrert of "the common Itocik; mirl of'fer payment Lo tke holders.or B r'b
il the prelerced stock of itn par value, und the unpuid accured rdividends thereon, the remaining ‘ih

es3ata a=~ Tevia ahall te Aivided - puld ta the hilnecyd or the common dtoeck according to

o]
thair cos mctive starca. l W
Firth. e said corporntion ahnll huve thres Uirectors , which nunber rrom time to el
tine may; oe incrended 1) accordance with the by-lawa orf thys corporation. ™e following per— B
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aora, Mritan P. ulloch, Leoeie . "olfe and Fewin C. liapmon, one of whon 18 o eit'zen
or sha #sate o1 Fae Yard and setually cestitna thepning abFad) web a2 susk Tor %e Cient
yenry o until thetr auceeasuen aca Ay =1ected witk qualirted,

Sirth. s nenagment o1 tha propapty, buninant amd arfaipa o tne corporation ahaly
be ventad in the Board or Wiroctorn who avall fictnte 15~ genaral buainesz policy, wnd,
mibject tn any proviniona, statuten, or Lo the vote of 151 atockholders, detacirine wll
mattars perteining: to 169 business wna aflaiers. It adiditlon to she aforvesit genecal
pawerd and to the powers conferred by astatute, tle Hoapd o Directors anall hinve power
40 open Sthe atoek booka; rivr and vagy the amount to be cedecverd no workirng enpltnl; %o
anll, a3sign, transfery manaija, leaide, ve othecw!ne diaspune of any or all property,
franchine or ndnets of the corporaiion.

™nr chove granted powers Se thoa corporation and to tre Zoapr! of Directurs are in
fustherance and not in limitdation of the yenern) powera cuntecred by lew upon the
Dicrectors of the Corporation.

In witress wheceof we have hereunto 3set oul ha'wia this S5th duy or Septenber, 1912.

Test. Wm. P, Tulloch ( SEAL)
o e R, s P e ey George M, Wolfe ( 3RAT)
Erwin €, Harrmon S1AL)

State of Yaryland, lontiiomery County, &4;

I herceby certify that on “his :_)ti".fie.y of Ssuiermbar, in the yeer 1212, hefarse She
subscriber, a hotary Public, in and for lont.omery Courty in nhe State of ilarylard, psr-
sonally anppeared Geo. . Woll'e and Fewin €. Harmon and acknowledjed the arorcgoing
certificate of incorporation fo be their wnet.

Witness my hoand and notarial seal.

J. Flayd Cianel

J. Floyd Ciinel
Notary Public

lotary Public

Mapylond,

City of Washingion, limtrict of Colarnbia, S5
I heceby coartify that on thias Sth day of Ssptember in the year ninetesn hundred and

twelve, before mn, the subscriber, a Notary Public in and rfor the District of Columbia,

Peesonally appeared William P, Tulloch ant cckbowledped the foreyoing costificate of ;

incorporation to be his get.

Vitnea® my hand and notarila neal.

Howard Moran

Howard Moran Hotary Puhliec, b, .

Motury Publie

Disteict or

Columbia,
I, Biward C. Peter. one of the Judien of tha 1'irsuit Court Tor 'lontaomery Ctlmn‘.'.y,

40 hereby certify that the aforeuing Certificate hn3s been submitted to ne for eximination’

and I do further certify that snld Certificate in executed in conformity with tha low.

Edward C. Pater, Judie of Circutit Court.

{F11ed for reacord in the of:ice of tho Stane Tax Commianionar, :Heptember 19th, 1912, at 9

o'aloek A. M. and the anae day wan cocorded tn Liver 1. S0 Lo, S5, tolius 34 and 335 ona

Amb 'lldm

hidtee

il ak . L
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{(Above) The Foregt Glen Station of the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad; maybe
these are National Park Seminary students posing for the photographer.
Collection of Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commisaion.
(Below) Baltimore and Ohio Railroad Metropolitan Branch, looking east; the
Forest Glen station is at right, and the Castle at left; between them is a 43
wailting shelter for westbound passengers., Formerly a fence (visible in first
photo of the Castle) separated the two tracks, and passengers used a tunnel
under the tracks; but by time this photo was taken the fence had been removed,
and a walkway connects the two tracks, Photo taken in 1940's, Collection of
Robert B, Davis, Silver Spring. '
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Forest Glen Historic District
Kensington Quadrangle

(Official MHT district boundaries)
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M:31-8

Forest Glen Historic District

Kensington Quadrangle

(official MHT boundaries, Determined Eligible)
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Forest Glen Historic District

Kensington Quadrangle

(Official MHT Boundaries, Determined Eligible)
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